WHITE’S HISTORY, GAZETTEER AND DIRECTORY OF STAFFORDSHIRE, 1851

ARMITAGE is a pleasant village, in the fertile vale of the Trent, on the  south side of the Trent and Mersey Canal, 5 miles N.N.W. of Lichfield, and 2½ miles E.S.E. of Rugeley.  The parish includes the hamlet of Handsacre, and contains 1014 inhabitants, and 1821 acres 1 rood 11 perches of land, part of which lies on the north side of the river.   Armitage forms about 

three-fifths of the parish, and was formerly called Hermitage, from a tradition that a hermit anciently resided in a sequestered spot between the church and the Trent.  The parish is in several manors, subject to the court leet of the manor of Longdon.  J. N. Lane, Esq., is lord of the manor of Armitage and Handsacre, and the other principal landowners are Sir George Chetwynd, the Hon. Robert Curzon, and J. Spode, T. J. Birch, and H. M. Chadwick, Esqs.  Armitage Park is surrounded by a beautiful and picturesque domain, and is the property and seat of Josiah Spode, Esq., who was high sheriff of the county in 1850.  The house is a handsome Gothic mansion, 1 mile W. of the church, forming a complete square, with an embattled pediment, and four turrets at the corners, crowned by cupolas.  In the romantic pleasure grounds, the canal passes through a short tunnel cut through the solid rock.  Both the house and grounds have been much improved by their present owner, and the latter contain beautiful gardens, fountains, rock work, etc.  Armitage Lodge is the pleasant seat of 

T. Birch, Esq.  Lee Hall, now a farm house, belongs to the Hon. Robert Curzon.  The Church is dedicated to St. John the Baptist, and stands on  a rocky eminence, which commands a fine view of the vale of Trent, and the distant hills of Charnwood Forest, in Leicestershire.  The nave was rebuilt in 1844, and the chancel in 1847, but the tower is ancient and contains three bells, one of which is dated 1727, and inscribed, “I to the church the living call, and to the grave do summon all.”  The church was restored in the original Norman style, and is now a handsome structure.  The organ was given by Josiah Spode, Esq., who, in 1850, enriched the east window with  beautiful stained glass, representing our Saviour, St. John, and 

St. Peter.  The benefice is a perpetual curacy, valued at only £100, in the patronage of the Bishop of Lichfield, and incumbency of the Rev. F. Wilson.  The tithes belong to the prebend of Handsacre, but are leased to the executors of the late T. H. Lister, Esq., whose family was long seated at Armitage Park.  The tithes were commuted in 1844 for £336 per annum.  

The National Schools for boys, girls, and infants, were built in 1839, at the cost of about £1000.  Near Armitage Lodge is an Independent Chapel, erected about 30 years ago, by the late Thomas Birch, Esq.  In 1720, John Bolton gave £30 to be laid out in land for the use of the incumbent, who now receives £3 yearly from 1½ acre purchased with this legacy. 

Mr. Bolton also left a cottage and garden for the use of the clerk, and they are now worth about £5 per annum, exclusive of a piece of waste enclosed from the side of the road by a former clerk. The benefactions to the poor parishioners are £2.  2s per annum from an acre of land and five cattle gates, left by William Oldacre, in 1753; and 16 shillings a year, as the interest of £20, left by Benjamin Bolton, in 1730.

Armitage

 Marked 1 are at Brereton; 2, Birchen-fields; 3, Booth-hurst;

4, Hollybank; 5, Lea Hall; and 6, Westfields.

Birch Thomas John, Esq., Armitage Lodge

Spode Josiah, Esq., Armitage Park

Bolas George, gardener, Park

Bold Thomas, bricklayer

Brown William, brickmaker

Brown Sarah, National schoolmistress

Carthy Edward, brickmaker

Cotgrave John, shoemaker

Cowles Henry, victualler, Ash Tree

Dawson Reuben, shopkeeper

Dawson Reuben, junior, brickmaker

Green Thomas, shoemaker and victualler, Boat House

Harrop Mr John, Cottage

Hoon Samuel, victualler, Plum Pudding

Hutchinson Elizabeth, Infant schoolmistress

Jackson Samuel, parish clerk

Jones Edward, drill & machine owner

Kent Ebenezer, veterinary surgeon

Leonard William, carpenter

1 Lock Robert, victualler, Talbot Inn

Middleton John, tailor

Millett William, shoemaker

1 Morecroft William, blacksmith

Painter William, joiner and beerhouse

Robinson John, gardener

Rowley Mr Walter

Shemmonds Henry, butcher

Smith George, brewer and maltster

Swann Rev. George William (Independent)

Turner Robert, tailor

Weate William, shoemaker and beerhouse

Wilson Rev. Francis, M.A. incumbent

Wood Abraham, shopkeeper and beerhouse

Wood William, National schoolmaster

Woodward Mr William

Yeld Misses, boarding school

Farmers

5 Baker Joseph, bailiff

6 Byatt William

Cox John

4 Jones Samuel

Kent Charles

5 Lander Walter John

Meacham William

Moore Joseph

3 Saunders William

Shemmonds John

Warren Matthew

